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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT W{}J& ShmY

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK i DCTUMINT
CETTTIONTTALTY FILED
SR>
U8, Commadity Futures Trading Commission, TR R zmj; N
Plaintiff, R

Y. Order for Entry of Judgment by
Default, Perraapent Jajupction,
Auncillary Equitable Relief and Civil
Monetary Penalty Against

Defendant Frank Schiavone

Walier, Scotf, Lev & Assouiates, LLC,
Michael Ross,

Maxim Yampolsky.

tdward Sapienza, JIr.,

Frank Schiavornc,

Michael Korobov, and

Boris Shuster, a/k/s/ Robert Shostor,

Defendants, and

Michacl Edwards Trading Group, L,

ISG Fraight Systems, Inc,

Shuster, Shuster & Shuster, Lid.,

BLJ Consulting, Inc.,

Winn Industrics Division of Ontario, Limiled
{1430214 Ontano, Lunited), and

The Fuzzy Group, Inc..

B el . e SV R e g

Relief Defendants.

On November 18, 2003, the US. Commodity Futures Trading Commission
{"Commisgion” or "CFTC") filed a Complaint chargimg Defendant Frank Schiavone and others
{"“Defendant™ or “Schiavone™) with cheating, defrauding and decelving investors in an illegal
off-exchange foreign currency futures scheme In violation of Secton 4b¥aX2) of the
Commedity Exchange Act ("Act”}, 7 US.C. § 6b(a¥2) (2062}, and Commission Regulation
{"Regulation™) 1. 3(b}, 17 CF R § 1.1{b} (2001}, The Complaint also charged that Schiavone, as
an owner and operator of Walter, Scott, Lev & Associates, LLC ("WSL3, dircctly or indirectly

controlicd WSL and did not act in good faith or knowingly induced, directly or indirectly,



WSL’s violattons of Sections 4(a} and 4({b){a}{2} “{;r“ the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 6{a) and 6b{a}l}
(20023, and Regulation 1.1{b), 17 C.F.R. § 1.1{b} (2001), making Schiavone lable as a
controlhng person of WSL for WSL's violations pursnant to Section 13(h} of the Act, 7 UL.8.C. §
F3e(b) (2001).

On November 20, 2003, Schiavone was propetrly served with the summons, complaint
and supporting papers pursuani to Ruale (e} of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure {"Fed. R,
{Civ. P73 Schiavone fatled o answer the Complaint within the time permitted by Rule 12(a)(1)
of the Fed. R. Civ. I, and provided by this C'ourt in the N;)vember 7, 2006 Order lifting the stay
of proceedings for Schiavone and providing hint with twenty days to file an answer o the
Complaint. Schiavone s not an miant, incompetent person, or in the military. Accordingly, on
December 7, 2006, the Clerk of this Court entered a certificale of default against Schiavone
pursuaint to Local Rule 351 and 55(a) of the Fed. R. Civ, Pro.

The Commuission has now submitted its Application for Entry of Judgment by Defuuli
with Injunchive Rehief, Civil Monetary Penaltisg. and Anollary Eguwitable Rehef Against
Schiavone ("Apphication™) pursuant fo Fed. R, Crv. P. 55(b)2) and Local Rule 533.2{(b). The
Court has carefully considered the Conplaint, the alicgations of which are well-pleaded and
hereby taken as true, the Application, anid other writton submussions of the Commission filed
with the Court, and being fully advised, hereby:

GRANTS the Commission’s Application against Schiavone and enters findings of fact
and conclusions of law finding Schiavone hable as to all violations alleged in the Complaint.
The Court further grants the Commission’s request for mjunctive relief, restitution, disgorgement

and a civil monelary penally.  Accordingly, the Cowt now issues the following Order for Rafry
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of Judgment by Default, Poronanent Injunction, Ar;ciiimy Equitable Relief and Civil Monetary
Penalty Against Defendant Frank Schiavone ("Order”™).
L FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

A, Jurisdiction and Venue

This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and Schiavone pursuant
1o Sectton 6o of the Act, 7 US.C. § 1Xa-1, which authorizes the Comuission to zeek Imunclive
relel agmnst any porson whenever it shall appear that such person has snpaged, 1s engaging, or
iz about to engage in any sct or practice constituting a vi;jlaziarz of any provision of the Act or
any rule, regulation, or order thereunder,

Vaenue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Scction 6c(e} of the Act, 7 US.CL § 13a-
1. in that Schiavane was found i, inhabitod, or transacted husiness 1n this distriet, and the scts
and praciices in violation of the Act and Regulations occurred within this district, among other
places,
B. Fipdings of Fact

WSL was a New York Himited lability company organized in 1998 with an office at 90
Iohn Street, Suite 407, New York, New York 10038, It has never been registered with the
Commisgion in any capacity.

Schravone resides in the Federal Correctional lnstitution in Fort Dix, New Jersey.
Schiavone has nevor been registered with the Commission,

Schigvone was one of the four individuals who formed WSL and served as WSL
Treasurer.

From at least January 1999 1o at least Apnil 2002 (“relevant time period”), Schiavone and

others fraudulently solictted more than 850 costomers for the purpese of trading foveign currency



contracts which werg, in fact, ilegal off-exchange goreign currency fufures contracts. Instead of
actually trading clisnts’ funds, Sclnavone misappropriated a substantial portion of the funds
obtained from customers. At the samg thne, Schiavone misled investors with false monthly
account statements showing considerable profits.  Schiavone then abrupily notified customers
that alleged catastrophic trading losses had wiped out thew funds. Schiazvone knew that cliens
funds were being musappropriated, that the monthly account statements showing profits were
false and that the clients’ losses were not due to catastrophic trading losses.

During the relevant time period, at least fEﬁ,ROO,?):@i was mizappropriated from customers
by Schiavonc and others.

Schiavene, through WSL, marketed WSLs managed foreign currency trading accounts
1o mdividusls who had assets totaling less than $5 million and had ne husiness, personal or other
need to take or make delivery m forewgn currency or to hedge against movements in the foreign
gurrency markets. Instead, mvestors entered into these transactions o spoculate and profit from
antivipated price fluctoations in the markets for these currencies.

Investors did not anticipate taking — and did not take - delivery of the foreign currencics
they purchased as a consequence of these invesiments. WSL did not require its clients to set up
hanking relationships to facilitate delivery of the foreign carreneies. Once the market moved in a
favorable direction, mvestors expected, based on the represontations made o them, WSL wo
tiquidate thar investments by authorizing the sale of the contract and taking the profits. The
WSL customer account agreement made reference fo the margining and settlement of
transactions i WS customer accounts, and one full paragraph in the custemer agreement
defined settlement procedures whereby all profits and losses were reflected in customer sccount

statements the ollowing month. WSL's account agreement and solicitalion materials provided



that comnissions are charged on a round-turmn basis. Morcover, WSL’s brochure assured
customers that their principal iovestments woukl be protecied because WSL would be
responsible for all margin requirements, and positions would be exited whep stop losscs are
tnggered.

WSL was not a proper counterparty or an aflifiate of a proper counterparty under the Act
authorized o copage in foreign currency Totures fransactions with retait customers. WSL was
not a (mancial institution, a broker or dealer, or an associated person of a broker or dealer. WSL
was not a Fulures Commussion Meschant (FOM™Y, or én affilinte of a FCM. WSL did not
condoct ransactions on a facilhity designated as 8 contract market or regstered as a derivatives
fransaction execution fagilily.

WKL, did not conduct the forcipn cirrency futures transactions on or subject to the rules
of a bBoard of irade that had been designated by the CFTC as a contract market. 'WSL, did not
conduct transactions on a facility registered as a derivatives fransaction execution facility.

Prioy to December 21, 2000, WSL's conduct was such that it operated as a board of trade
based upon its being a public marketplace offermg standardized futurcs contracts to buvers and
setlers with the avadability of price information and aty execution and sctticment mechanism.
WAL mass marketed to small investors by providing a foreign currency trading facility that
allowed its customers, with a minitmum depostt, to hecomne “traders”™ at its board of trade. WSL
recraited traders, manv of whom have no prior trading experisnice, and urged them fo selicit the
general public through cold calls to invest with WSL, WSL also provided the mechanism for
traders to get prices, make orders, execute orders, and offset those orders with matching oppeosite

transactions. WL further confirmed, both omally and 1 wnting, that the (raders” orders had
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been executed. WSL's orders were standardized, Hleverage(l coniracts of its own devise, The
contracts were closed out by entening inte an offsetling transaction rather than by taking delivery.
C. Conclusions of Law

1. WSLs Transactions Were Futures Contraets.,

The foreign cuvency contracts offered and sold by Scluavone, through WSL, were
futures contracts,  WSL was pot a proper counterparty or an affihate of a proper counterparty
authonized under the Act or Regulations o engage in loraign currency fiture fransactions with
retail customers. |

2. Schiavone is Liable for Violations of Section 4b{a}¥2} of the Commodity
Exchange Act and Commissien Regulation 1.1(b).

During the relevant time peried, Schiavene cheated or defrauded or aitempted to cheat or
defrand investors or prospective investors of WSL, willully made or caused to be muade false
reports or siatements, and willfully decaived or attempted o decelve investors or prospective
mvestors by, amaong other things, knowingly: misapproprialing finds received from investors
and making false statements rsgardmg {rading losses, the risks of tradimg foreign curencies, the
legitimacy of their operation, and the safety of nvestor funds, all in violation of Section 4b(a){ 2}
of the Act, 7 UK C. § ab{aj(2) {2001} and Regulation 1.1b), 17 CERS§ L1y {2002).
Schavene’s conduct was in connection with the orders to make, or the making of, contracts of
sale of conumoditics for fature delivery, made or o he madc, for or on behalf of any other
persons, and such contracts for tuture delivery were or could be used for the purposes set forth in
Section 4b(a){2) of the Act, 7 US.C § 6b(a) (2001

Dauring the relevant time period, Schiavone, as an owner and operator of WSL, directly or
indirectly controlled WAL and s schemes and did not act in good faith or knowingly mduced,

directly or indirectly, the acts constituting WSLs violations of Scetion 4b{a)(2) of the Act, 7
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US.C. § 6b{a}2) (2001}, and Regulation 1.1{b}, l‘? C.FR.§ 1.1{b) (2002}, Thus, pursuant to
Sectton 13(b} of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § i3cefh) (2001}, Schisvone is lable for WSL's violations of
Section 4b{a}2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b{a}(2} (2001}, and Regulation 1.1{b), 17 CFR.§ LI
{20021, to the same extent as WSL.

3 Schiavone is Liable for Violations of Section 4{a) of the Commodity
Exchange Acl.

Duning the relevant time period, WSL offered to enter nto, executed, confirmed the
execution of, or conducied an office or business i the Untled States for the purpose of soliciting,
accepting any order lor. or otherwise <dealing in transactions in, or in connection with, a contract
for the purchase or sale of a commodity for future delivery when: (2} such transactions were not
conducted on or subject o the riles of a board of trade which was designated or registorad by the
CFTC as a contract market or derivatives transachion exccution facility for such commueodity, and
{b} such contracts were not exeguted or consz!mmate{i by or thraugh such contract market,
violation of Scction 4{as of the Act, 7 UK .C. 8 6(a) (2001

Dring the relevant ame penod, Schiavone, as an owner and operator of WSL, directly or
indirectly controlled WSL and did not acl in pood faith or knowingly tnduced, divectly or
indirectly, WSL’s acts eomstituting the violations of Seetion 4(a) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § s(a)
{2001, Thus, pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Act, 7TU.S.CL § 13alb) (2001), Schiavone 1s lable
for WSL's violations of Section 4{a} of the Act, 7 U§.C. § 6(a) {2001} to the same extent as
WS1.

4. A Permanent Injunction, Civil Monetary Penaity, and Other Eguitable
Relief are Appropriate Remedies.

Pernument injunctive reliel 1s warranted in hght of the egregious nature of Schiavone’s

knowing fraudulent solicitation of customers 1 a scheme 1o systematically defrand the public



through the offer and sale of 1licgal foreign curroney futures contracts, These facts demonstrate a
reasonable likelhood of future violations.

Imposition of a civil monetary penally 18 appropriate in this case as Schiavone's
violations of the Act were intentional and directly affected the numerous victirms of this fraud,
Likewise, the remediss of restitution and disgorgement are appropriaie 1o compensate the victims
of Schiavone’™s wrongful acts and to deprive Schiavone of the use of ill-gotien gains,

I ORDER FOR RELIEF
A. Permanent lujunction

Y IS THERFFORE ORDERED THAT:

i Schiavone 15 permuanently restramned, enjoined and prohibited from directly or
indiredtiy:

A Cheafing or detrauding or attempting o cheat or defraud oiher persons, or
wiilfully making or causing fo be made to another porson any false report
or statement thereof, or willfully ontering or causing to be ontered for
another person any  false reeord thereof, or walifully decorving or
attempting to deceive another person by any means whatsoever in regard to
any order or contract or the disposition or execution of any order or
contract, or i regard to any act of agency performed with respeet to any
arder or contract for another person, In or @ connection with any srder to
make, or the making of, any contract of salc of any commadity for future

delivery, made, or to be made, for or on behalf of any other person if such
contract for future delivery 1s or may be used for:

{1 hedging any transaclion n inferstatc commerce in a
commodity or the products or byproducts thereof,

{2}  deterzmning the price basis of any transacuon in intersiate
commerce in such commodity; or

(3 delivering any commodity sold, shipped, or received in
intorgtate commoree for the fuifilirnent thereof

n violation of Section 4b{a)(2) of the Act |, 7 U.S.C. & 8h{a)(2) {2001 and
Sectinn 1.1(b) of the Regulations, 17 C.FR, §1.1¢{b) {2001}, and
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2.

ar midirectiy:

Offering to cntor inte, entering o, executing, confirming the execution
of, or conducting any office of business anywhere 1n the United States, its
territories or possessions for the purposs of soliciting, accepling any order
for, or otherwise dealing i, any transaction in, or connection with, a
contract for the purchase or sale of a commoditly for future delivery in
violation of Section 4{a} of the Act, 7 UL5.C. § 6(a3(2001).

Schiavone is further permanently resirained, cuioiued and prohthited from directly

Trading on or subject to the rules of any registercd entity, at that term is
defined in Section 1a{29) of the Act, 7 LLS.C. § 1a29),

Engaging in, controlimg or direcling the trading for any commiodity
interest account for or on behall of any other person or entity, whether by
power of attorney or othorwise;

Seticiting or accepting any funds from any person in conmaclion with the
purchase or sale of any cormmodity interest;

Applving for registrabion or claiming exemplion from registeation with the
Commussion In any capacily, and engaging m any achivity requirmg such
registration or cxemption from registration with the Commission, except
as provided for i Regulation 4.14 {a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9) (2004), or
seting as a principal, ageot or any other nfficer or employee of any person
repistered, exernpted from registration or required io be rogistered with the
Comunission, except as provided for in Regulation 4. 14 {a(93, 17 CFR. &
4. 14{pH 9y {2004

Frdering e any commodity nterest transactions for his own personal
account, for any account m which he has a dircct or indirect interest and/or

having any cormmodity interests traded on his behaif: and/or

Engaging in any business actvitics related (o commodity interest trading,

B. Civil Moaetary Penalty

I'T IS FURTHER ORDERED that as of the date of entry of this Order, Schiavone shall

pay a civil monetary penalty 1 the amount of 3288279, consisting of triple his monetary gain of

$96,093, plus post-judgment interesl. Post-judgment interest shall accrue beginnuyg on the date

of entry of this Order and shall be determined by using the Treasury Bill rate prevathog on the
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date of entry of this Urder pursuant to 28 I},S‘C.v{é 1961, All paynients made by Schiavone
pursuant to this Order shail be applied first o sotisly Schiavene’s Civil Restitution and
Disgorgement obligations wid, upon satisfaction of such obligations, shall thereafter be apphied
to satsfy the civil moonetary penaity,

Schiavone shall pay this penaity by electrome funds transfor, U.S. postal moncy order,
eertified check, bank cashier’s check, or bank money order. I payment is e be made by other
than electronic finds transfor, Schiavons shall make the payment paysble to the US. Commeodity
FMumsTm&angnmﬁﬁaﬁmﬂsmnh@ﬁmﬂﬁbwugad&em:

Commodity Futures Trading Commission

Division of Enforcement

ATTN: Mane Baleman - AMZ-3060

DOT/FAAMMAC

6300 5. Macarthur Bivd,

Uklahoma City, OK 73169
If the paynient 1s 1o be made by elscironic funds transfer, Schiavone shalt contact Marie Baleman
at 405-954.6569 for instructions. Schiavone shall accompany the payment of the penalty with a
cover letter that identifies Schiavone ard the name and docket number of this proceeding.

Schigvone shall sumultancousty trangmit a copy of the cover letter and the form of
paviment to (a} the Director and to the Office of Cooperative Enforcement, Bivision of
Enforcement, U.S. Commodity Fulures Trading Commission, at Three Lalavette Centre, 1155
21% Stroot, NW, Washington, D.C. 20381, and (b} Regional Counsel, U.S. Commeodity Futures
Trading Commission, Eastern Rogenal Oifice, al 140 Broadway, 19" Floor, New York, NY

16605,
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. Disgorgement and Restitution

1. Disgorgement

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that as of the date of this Order, Schiavone shall disgorge
all benefits recetved, directly or indivectly, from acts or practices which constitute violations of
the At and Regulations as described. Schiavone is thorefore hiable to disporge his ill-gotten
gaing in the amount of $96,094 plus pro-judgment mterest and post-udgment intereat.  Pre-
sudgment interest from January 1, 1999 1o the daje of this Order shall be determiined by using the
underpayment rate established guarterly by the Internal Revenue Scorvice pursuant to 26 US.CL 8
6621 (a}2). Posi-judgment interest shall acerue beginmng on the date of eatry of this Order and
shall be determined by using the Treasury Bill rate prevailing on thc-date of entry of this Order
prarsuant to 28 US.CL§ 1961,

Al disgorgement pavments made by Schnavone shall be used to pay rostitulion to the
defrauded customers.  Schiavone’s disgorgement obligation coincides with his restitution
obligation. such that satisfaction i any part of his restilution obligation shall simultaneously
result in satistaction of his disgorgemant obligation to the same extent.  Further, Schiavone's
disgorgement obligation in this matter colncides with the criminal judgment restitution
obligation entered against him on Sentember 14, 2004, 11.S, Drsinct Court for the Southern
District of New York in U85 v Ross, ef o/, SDRY. Docket No. 03 Cr. 1306 (“eriminal
judgment obhigaton™).  Accordingly, satisfachion in any pari of Schisvoene’s crimunal judgment
ohligation shall simultanecusly result in satisfachion of Schavone™s disgorgement obligation o
the same extent,

Schiavope shall pay disgorgenient to Brian Rosner, Esq., the Court-appointed Receiver,

Rosner & Napicrala, LLP, 26 Broadway, 22 Floor, New York, NY 10004-24424 by eloctronic



funds transfer, or by U.S. postal money order, ccgrtiﬁcd check, bank cashier’s check or bank
money order, under cover of a letter that 1dentifies Schiavone and the name and Docket nuimber
of the procceding; Schiavone shall simultaneously transmit a copy of the cover letter and the
form of payment to the Director and to the Office of Cooperative Enforcement, Division of
Inforcement, U.S. Commeodity Futures Trading Commission, at the following address: Three
Lafayette Centre, 1155 21" Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581, and to the Regional Counsel,
U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, Easterm Regional Officc, at the following
address: 140 Broadway, 19™ Floor. New York, NY 1{)(}()5-.

2, Restitution

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that as of the datc of this Order, Schiavone shall pay and
be jointly and scverally liable with his co-conspirator in this matter (CFIC v. Walter, Scott, Lev
& Assoc., LLC, et al, Docket Number 03 CV 9126 (GBD)), Michael Korobov, for restitution to
defrauded customers in the amount of $6,800,951 plus pre-judgment and post-judgment interest.
Pre-judgment interest shall accrue from January 1, 1999, to the datc of this Order and shall be
determined by using the underpayment rate established quarterly by the Internal Revenue Scrvice
pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6621(a)(2). Postjudgment interest shall accrue beginning on the date of
entry of this Order and shall be determined by using the Treasury Bill rate prevailing on the date
of this Order pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. Schiavone is ordered to make such payments to
Brian Rosner, Esq., the Court-appointed Receiver, Rosner & Napierala, LLP, 26 Broadway, 22"
Floor, New York, NY 10004-24424 by cashter’s check, cerlified check or postal money order,
under cover of a letter that identifies the name and Docket number of this actton and the name of
thms Court, with a copy to the Director and to the Office of Cooperative Enforcement, Division of

Enforcement, U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, at the following address: Three
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Lafayette Centre, 1155 217 Street, NW, Washingza;z, D.C. 20581, and to the Regionat Counsel,
U.S. Commeodity Fuiwres Trading Commission, Eastern Regional Office, at the following
address: 140 Broadway, 19% Floor, New York, NY 10005,

All payments made pursuant to this Order by Schiavone shall first be made to the
defrauded customers for restitution parstant to a paviment plan that will be determined by the
Court untd those amounts {ncleding inferest) are fully satisBed. All payments after the
restitntion and disgorgement obligations have been satinfied shall then be applicd to the civid
mongetary penally described herein, "

Schiavons's restitulion ohligation coincides with his disgorgemeni obligation and with
the eriminal judgment ohligation entersd against hirm on September 10, 2004, U.S. District Court
for the Sowthern Digirict of New York in U8 » Ross, er ol S.ONY. Docket No, (3 Cr. 1306,
Accardingly, satisfaction of any part of Schiavone’s disgorgement obligation or satisfaction in
any purt of Schiavene’s erimunal judgment restitition obligation shall cmultansously result in
satisfaction of Schiavone’s restifution obligation in this matter to the same extont.

D. Prehibition on Transfer of Faads

YT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Schmvoneg shall nmet transfer or cause others to
transfer funds or other proporty to the custedy, possession or control of any other person for the
purpose of concealing such funds or property from the Court, the Plaintiff| the Receiver, ot any
officer that may be appointed by the Couart.
E. Fermancnt Receiver

I'T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Brian Rosner, Esg., Rosner & Napicrala, LLP, 26
Broadway, 22" Floor, New York, NY 10004-24424 is appointed as a pormanent equity Receiver

1o take into his immediale custody, contrel, and possession all cash, cashier’'s checks, funds,
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assets, and property of Schiavone, including funds or property of investors wherever found,
whether held in the name of Schiavone or otherwise, including, but not imated te, 21l books and
records of account and original entry, eleclronmically stored data, tapc recordings, all funds,
securities, contents of safety deposit boxes, metals, currencics, coins, real or porsonal property,
commodity fxtures trading aceounts, bank aopd trust accounts, mutzal fund accounts, credst card
hne-oftoredit accowmits ard other assets, of whatever kind and nature and wherever situated, and
authorizing, smpowering and dirceting such recetver to collect and take charge of and to hold
and administer the same subject to furthor order of the Court, in order to preveary irreparable loss,
durnage and injury to investors, to conserve and prevent the dissipation of furds, lo prevent
further cvasions and violahons of the Iederal commodity laws by Schiavone and to satisfy
Schiavone’s obligations to pay vestitution. disgorge hus til-gotten gains and to pay a civil
monetary penalty.
F. Motices
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all notices regured to be given by any provision in
this Order shall be sent by certified maid, retum receipt requested, as follows:
Neotics to Commission: Regional Counsel
LS, Commodity Futures Trading Commission
Division of Enforcement - Bastern Regional Office
140 Broadway, 19" Floor
New York, New York 10063
Phone: (646) 746-9700
Fax: (640} 746-5740
Notice to Recerver: Brian Rosner, Bsq.
Rosner & Napierala, LLP
- 1
26 Broadway, 22™ Floor
New York, WY 10004-2442

Phone: (212) 785.2577
Fax: (212} 785-5203.



. Jurisdiction
T IS FURTHER GRDERED that this Court shall retain junsdiction of this case to

azsure compliance with this Order and for all other purposes related to this action.

SO ORDERED. af j 20547 New York on thisd day of J Sancd 200§

g, 4 Ul

z@y‘rzﬂzr) STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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‘Rcspe@ifaiiy subtted,

V.S COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING
COMMISSION

Stephen }. Obic

Zisg?rzai Counsel
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